Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee
November, 2022
Minutes

The Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee includes the following members:

Dr. Justin Moss (AH)

Dr. Ahmed Elkassabgi (BE)

Dr. Hamed Shojaei (ST)

Dr. Cheryl Monfee (EH)

Ms. Tammy Weaver, Registrar
Ms. Jessica Brock, Admissions

l. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — No minutes to approve
Il NEW BUSINESS

A. The committee voted by email to accept the three below recommendations for the
International Baccalaureate (IB) program. All members voted yes except no response
from Dr. Elkassabgi.

1. Change the number of hours allowed for transfer from 24 hours to 30 hours.
Request to add new exams and update several articulations for some current exams
based on working with each department head.

3. Recommend the requested changes go into effect immediately.



Tammz Weaver

From: Justin Moss

Sent: Friday, November 11, 2022 3:34 PM

To: Tammy Weaver

Cc: Jessica Brock; Ahmed Alnassir; Hamed Shojaei; Cheryl Monfee; Alexis Scrimshire; Brandi
Tripp

Subject: Re: Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

Sounds like a good change to me. | vote yes.

Justin Moss, PhD (he/him/his)
Associate Professor of Psychology
Department of Behavioral Sciences
Witherspoon Hall 351

Arkansas Tech University



Tam mz Weaver

T
From: Hamed Shojaei
Sent: Friday, November 11, 2022 3:40 PM
To: Cheryl Monfee; Tammy Weaver
Cc: Justin Moss; Ahmed Alnassir; Jessica Brock; Alexis Scrimshire; Brandi Tripp
Subject: Re: Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

My vote is yes.

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Cheryl Monfee <cmonfeel@atu.edu>

Sent: Friday, November 11, 2022 3:39:05 PM

To: Tammy Weaver <tweaver@atu.edu>

Cc: Justin Moss <jmoss12 @atu.edu>; Ahmed Alnassir <aalnassir@atu.edu>; Hamed Shojaei <hshojaei@atu.edu>; Jessica
Brock <jbrock15@atu.edu>; Alexis Scrimshire <ascrimshire@atu.edu>; Brandi Tripp <btripp@atu.edu>

Subject: Re: Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

1 am also in favor of an email vote on this change. | vote yes .
Dr. Cheryl Monfee

Sent from my iPhone

On Nov 11, 2022, at 3:18 PM, Tammy Weaver <tweaver@atu.edu> wrote:

Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

Please see the attached agenda. Please review the one item and let me know if an email vote is
acceptable or if you want to meet via WebEx.

Thanks.
Tammy

Tammy Weaver, Registrar
Arkansas Tech University
Office of the Registrar
Brown Building, Suite 307
105 West O Street
Russellville, AR 72801-2222

Telephone: 479.968.0643
Fax: 479.968.0683
Email: tweaver@atu.edu

Please take a minute to complete this survey on the service you received.
1



Tammz Weaver

From: Cheryl Monfee

Sent: Friday, November 11, 2022 3:39 PM

To: Tammy Weaver

Cc: Justin Moss; Ahmed Alnassir; Hamed Shojaei; Jessica Brock; Alexis Scrimshire: Brandi
Tripp

Subject: Re: Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

Attachments: image001.jpg; Agenda November 2022 pdf

I'am also in favor of an email vote on this change. | vote yes .
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
http://www.atu.edu/registrar/survey.php




Tammy Weaver

From: Jessica Brock

Sent: Friday, November 11, 2022 3:30 PM

To: Tammy Weaver

Cc: Justin Moss; Ahmed Alnassir; Hamed Shojaei; Cheryl Monfee; Alexis Scrimshire; Brandi
Tripp

Subject: RE: Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

I’'m comfortable voting without a meeting. My vote is yes.

Thank you!

--Jess

Jessica Brock

Director of Admissions

Arkansas Tech University | Office of Admissions

Brown Hall, Suite 104 | 105 West O St | Russellville AR 72801

479-964-0583 ext 3408 | Fax 479-964-0522 | Follow us: ,‘ @ n
http://www.atu.edu/admissions | Apply for Admission Today! | Virtual Campus Tour

This communication and any files or attachments transmitted with it may contain information that is confidential, privileged and exempt from
disclosure under applicable law. This communication is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If you are the
intended recipient of this information, please treat it as cenfidential information and take all necessary action to keep it secure. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, forwarding, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this communication in error, please notify the sender at once so that appropriate action may be taken to protect the information
from further disclosure.

From: Tammy Weaver <tweaver@atu.edu>

Sent: Friday, November 11, 2022 3:18 PM

To: Tammy Weaver <tweaver@atu.edu>

Cc: Justin Moss <jmoss12@atu.edu>; Ahmed Alnassir <aalnassir@atu.edu>; Hamed Shojaei <hshojaei@atu.edu>; Cheryl
Monfee <cmonfeel@atu.edu>; Jessica Brock <jbrock15@atu.edu>; Alexis Scrimshire <ascrimshire@atu.edu>; Brandi
Tripp <btripp@atu.edu>

Subject: Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

Admissions, Academic Standards, and Student Honors Committee

Please see the attached agenda. Please review the one item and let me know if an email vote is acceptable or if you
want to meet via WebEx.

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
Agenda

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

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — No minutes to approve
NEW BUSINESS

A. It has been well over 10 years since the International Baccalaureate (1B) has been
reviewed. Hot Springs World Class High School, a public magnet secondary school
located in Hot Springs, is a participant in the IB program. Since several of these
graduates have matriculated to Arkansas Tech, it has been discovered that all of the IB
exams aren’t listed in the Tech catalog as accepted exams. Included are the following:

Change the number of hours allowed for transfer from 24 hours to 30 hours.

Request to add new exams and update several articulations for some current exams
based on working with each department head.
3. Current listing of IB exams in the 2022-23 Catalog.

I would like to recommend the requested changes go into effect immediately.



The current IB (International Baccalaureate) Diploma allows up to 24 semester credit hours of
undergraduate general education courses. In order to align with ADHE Arkansas Department of
Higher Education policy allowing up to 30 total semester credit hours, | would like recommend
the 24 semester credit hours limit be changed to up to 30 semester credit hours.

Below would be the updated catalog description:
IB (International Baccalaureate) Diploma

Students who successfully complete the International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme, with
a minimum score of four on each examination, will be granted up to 30 semester credit hours of
undergraduate general education courses. ATU may grant fewer than 30 semester credit hours
if the student received a score of less than four on an examination administered as part of the IB
Diploma Programme. Following are the IB examinations that Tech will accept, the
corresponding qualifying score, and credit awarded.

2. Below is the current articulation for English/Standard and English/Higher and proposed

articulation:

CURRENT

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

English/Standard

4 w/diploma

ENGL 1013 Composition |

English/Higher

4

ENGL 1013 Composition | &
ENGL 1023 Composition |l

PROPOSED

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

A: Language and
Literature/Higher

English A: Literature or English 4 w/diploma ENGL 1013 Composition | OR

A: Language and ENGL 2003 Introduction to
Literature/Standard World Literature

English A: Literature or English 4 6 hours from the below courses:

ENGL 1013 Composition |, ENGL
1023 Composition Il, ENGL 2003
Introduction to World
Literature, ENGL 2013
Introduction to America
Literature




3. Below is the current articulation for Math/Standard and Math/Higher and proposed articulation:

CURRENT

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

Math Studies/Standard 4 w/diploma MATH 1113 College Algebra
Math Studies/Higher 4 MATH 1203 Plane Trigonometry
Math/Standard 4 w/diploma MATH 1203 Plane Trigonometry
Math/Higher 4 MATH 2914 Calculus |
Math/Higher 5 MATH 2914 Calculus | & MATH

2924 Calculus Il

PROPOSED

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

Math Appl Interpretation/ 4 w/diploma MATH 1113 College Algebra
Standard

Math Appl Interpretation/ 5 w/diploma MATH 1113 College Algebra &
Standard MATH 1203 Plane Trigonometry
Math Analysis Approach/Higher | 4 MATH 2914 Calculus |

Math Analysis Approach/Higher | 5 MATH 2914 Calculus | & MATH

2924 Calculus Il

4. Add the new articulation for the Classic Languages listed below:

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

Latin: Language A or B/Standard | 4 w/diploma LAT 1013: Beginning Latin |
Latin: Language A or B/Standard | 5 w/diploma LAT 1013: Beginning Latin | &
LAT 1023: Beginning Latin ||
Latin: Language A or B/Higher 4 LAT 1013: Beginning Latin | &
LAT 1023: Beginning Latin Il
Latin: Language A/Higher 5 LAT 1013: Beginning Latin |, LAT
1023: Beginning Latin Il, & 6
hours of elective credit
Greek: Language A or 4 w/diploma 3 hours of elective credit
B/Standard
Greek: Language A or 5 w/diploma 6 hours of elective credit
B/Standard
Greek: Language A or B/Higher | 4 6 hours of elective credit
Greek: Language A/Higher 5 12 hours of elective credit




5. Add the new articulation for the Languages listed below:

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

German: Language A or 4 w/diploma GER 1013 Beginning German |

B/Standard

German: Language A or 5 w/diploma GER 1013 Beginning German | &

B/Standard GER 1023 Beginning German |

German: Language A or 4 GER 1013 Beginning German | &

B/Higher GER 1023 Beginning German Il

German: Language A/Higher 5 GER 1013 Beginning German |,
GER 1023 Beginning German I,
GER 2013 Intermediate German
| & GER 2023 Intermediate
German Il

French: Language A or 4 w/diploma FR 1013 Beginning French |

B/Standard

French: Language A or 5 w/diploma FR 1013 Beginning French | & FR

B/Standard 1023 Beginning French Il

French: Language A or B/Higher | 4 FR 1013 Beginning French | & FR
1023 Beginning French Il

French: Language A/Higher 5 FR 1013 Beginning French |, FR
1023 Beginning French Il, FR
2013 Intermediate French | &
FR 2023 Intermediate French ||

Mandarin: Language A or 4 w/diploma 3 hours of elective credit

B/Standard

Mandarin: Language A or 5 w/diploma 6 hours of elective credit

B/Standard

Mandarin: Language A or 4 6 hours of elective credit

B/Higher

Mandarin: Language A/Higher 5 12 hours of elective credit




6. Add the new articulation for the miscellaneous courses listed below:

IB Examination

Qualifying Score

Credit Awarded

Design Technology/ Standard or
Higher

4

3 hours of elective credit

Sports, Exercise, Health 4 3 hours of elective credit
Science/ Standard or Higher

Dance/ Standard or Higher 4 3 hours of elective credit
Business Management/ 4 3 hours of elective credit
Standard or Higher

Global Politics/ Standard or 4 POLS 2413: International
Higher Relations

IT Global Society/ Standard or 4 3 hours of elective credit
Higher

World Religions/ Standard or 4 PHIL 2013: Religions of the

Higher

World




2022 - 2023 Undergraduate Catalog

Credit By Examination

Arkansas Tech University recognizes the rigor of Advanced Placement (AP), International Baccalaureate Programme (IB), and the College Level
Examination Program (CLEP). Students who have scored accordingly on an AP, 1B, or CLEP exam can eam credit toward graduation at Arkansas Tech
University by receiving a qualifying score on the examinations. These credits can satisfy general education requirements.

Students who have already earned a grade in a course may not earn duplicate credit through advanced credit. Advanced credit is not used to calculate
a student's grade point average, and therefore, cannot be used to retain scholarship awards.

AP, CLEP, and IB scores should be documented on your application for admission. Submit official score reports or readable copies embossed by
your high school to the Office of Admissions. Students who have earned International Baccalaureate (1B) credit should submit their IB transcript for
evaluation.

No more than a total of 30 semester hours of correspondence, extension, military service, or credit by examination work may be applied as credit
towards a degree.

IB (International Baccalaureate) Diploma

Students who successfully complete the International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme, with a minimum score of four on each examination, will
be granted 24 semester credit hours of undergraduate general education courses. ATU may grant fewer than 24 semester credit hours if the student
received a score of less than four on an examination administered as part of the IB Diploma Programme.

Following are the IB examinations that Tech will accept, the corresponding qualifying score, and credit awarded.

IB Examination Qualifying Score Credit Awarded
Biology/Standard 4 widiploma BIOL 1014 Introduction to Biological Science
Biology/Higher 4 BIOL 1014 Introduction to Biological
Science or BIOL 1114 Principles of Biology

Chemistry/Standard 4 w/diploma CHEM 2124 General Chemistry |

Chemistry/Higher <4 CHEM 2124 General Chemistry I & CHEM
2134 General Chemistry II

Computer Science/Standard 4 w/diploma COMS 1013 Programming I & COMS 1011
Programming I Lab

Computer Science/Higher 4 COMS 1013 Programming 1 & COMS 1011
Programming I Lab

Economics/Standard 4 w/diploma ECON 2003 Principles of Economics I

Economics/Higher 4 ECON 2003 Principles of Economics 1 &
ECON 2013 Principles of Economics I1

English/Standard 4 w/diploma ENGL 1013 Composition I

English/Higher 4 ENGL 1013 Composition I & ENGL 1023
Composition I1

Environmental Systems/Higher 4 BIOL 1004 Principles of Environmental
Science

Film Studies/Higher kS ENGL 2173 Introduction to Film or JOUR 2173
Introduction to Film

Geography/Standard 4 w/diploma GEOG 2013 Regional Geography of the World

Geography/Higher E GEOG 2013 Regional Geography of the World

History/Standard (U.S.) 4 w/diploma HIST 2003 United States History to 1877

History/Higher (U.S.) 4 HIST 2003 United States History to 1877 &

HIST 2013 United States History since 1877

History/Standard (World) 4 w/diploma HIST 1503 World History to 1500

6 2022 - 2023 Undergraduate Catalog
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History/Higher (World) 4 HIST 1503 World History to 1500 & HIST
1513 World History since 1500
Japanese: Language A or B/Standard 4 w/diploma JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese |
Japanese: Language A or B/Standard 5 w/diploma JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese ] & JPN 1023
Beginning Japanese 11
Japanese: Language A or B/Higher 4 JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese 1 & JPN 1023
Beginning Japanese I1
Japanese: Language A or B/Higher 5 JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese 1 ,
JPN 1023 Beginning Japanese IT ,
JPN 2013 Intermediate Japanese | &
JPN 2023 Intermediate Japanese 11
Math Studies/Standard 4 w/diploma MATH 1113 College Algebra
Math Studies/Higher 4 MATH 1203 Plane Trigonometry
Math/Standard 4 w/diploma MATH 1203 Plane Trigonometry
Math/Higher 4 MATH 2914 Calculus 1
Math/Higher 5 MATH 2914 Calculus 1 & MATH 2924
Calculus I
Music/Standard 4 wi/diploma MUS 1713 Theory |
Music/Higher 4 MUS 1713 Theory I
Music/Higher 5 MUS 1713 Theory 1 & MUS 1723 Theory Il
Philosophy/Standard 4 w/diploma PHIL 2003 Introduction to Philosophy
Philosophy/Higher 4 PHIL 2003 Introduction to Philosophy
Physics/Standard 4 w/diploma PHYS 2014 Algebra-Based Physics |
Physics/Higher 4 PHYS 2014 Algebra-Based Physics | & PHYS
2024 Algebra-Based Physics Il
Psychology/Standard 4 w/diploma PSY 2003 General Psychology
Psychology/Higher 4 PSY 2003 General Psychology
Social and Cultural Anthropology/Standard 4 w/diploma ANTH 1213 Introduction to Anthropology
Social and Cultural Anthropology/Higher 4 ANTH 2003 Cultural Anthropology
Spanish: Language A or B/Standard 4 w/diploma SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish I
Spanish: Language A or B/Standard 5 w/diploma SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish1 & SPAN 1023
Beginning Spanish 11
Spanish: Language A or B/Higher 4 SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish1 & SPAN 1023
Beginning Spanish 11
Spanish: Language A or B/Higher 5 SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish 1,
SPAN 1023 Beginning Spanish II,
SPAN 2013 Intermediate Spanish 1 &
SPAN 2023 Intermediate Spanish 1]
Theater Arts/Standard 4 w/diploma TH 2273 Introduction to Theatre
Theater Arts/Higher 4 TH 2273 Introduction to Theatre
Visual Arts/Standard 4 w/diploma ART 2123 Experiencing Art
Visual Arts/Higher 4 ART 2123 Experiencing Art

2022 - 2023 Undergraduate Catalog 7




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
ENGL 1023 Composition Il

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

ENGL 1013 Composition I, ENGL
1023 Composition 1l, ENGL 2003
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
LAT 1023: Beginning Latin |l
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

B/Standard GER 1023 Beginning German |l

German: Language A or 4 GER 1013 Beginning German | &

B/Higher GER 1023 Beginning German |

German: Language A/Higher 5 GER 1013 Beginning German |,
GER 1023 Beginning German Il,
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
1023 Beginning French I, FR
2013 Intermediate French | &
FR 2023 Intermediate French I|

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
Examination Program (CLEP). Students who have scored accordingly on an AP, IB, or CLEP exam can eamn credit toward graduation at Arkansas Tech
University by receiving a qualifying score on the examinations. These credits can satisfy general education requirements.

Students who have already eamed a grade in a course may not earn duplicate credit through advanced credit. Advanced credit is not used to calculate
a student's grade point average, and therefore, cannot be used to retain scholarship awards.

AP, CLEP, and IB scores should be documented on your application for admission. Submit official score reports or readable copies embossed by
your high school to the Office of Admissions. Students who have eamed International Baccalaureate (IB) credit should submit their IB transcript for
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
Biology/Standard 4 w/diploma BIOL 1014 Introduction to Biological Science
Biology/Higher 4 BIOL 1014 Introduction to Biological
Science or BIOL 1114 Principles of Biology

Chemistry/Standard 4 w/diploma CHEM 2124 General Chemistry |

Chemistry/Higher 4 CHEM 2124 General Chemistry I & CHEM
2134 General Chemistry I1

Computer Science/Standard 4 w/diploma COMS 1013 Programming | & COMS 1011
Programming I Lab

Computer Science/Higher 4 COMS 1013 Programming | & COMS 1011
Programming I Lab

Economics/Standard 4 w/diploma ECON 2003 Principles of Economics 1

Economics/Higher 4 ECON 2003 Principles of Economics 1 &
ECON 2013 Principles of Economics Il

English/Standard 4 w/dipioma ENGL 1013 Composition I

English/Higher 4 ENGL 1013 Composition I & ENGL 1023
Composition 11

Environmental Systems/Higher 4 BIOL 1004 Principles of Environmental
Science

Film Studies/Higher 4 ENGL 2173 Introduction to Film or JOUR 2173
Introduction to Film

Geography/Standard 4 w/diploma GEOG 2013 Regional Geography of the World

Geography/Higher 4 GEOG 2013 Regional Geography of the World

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
Japanese: Language A or B/Standard 5 w/diploma JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese I & JPN 1023
Beginning Japanese 11
Japanese: Language A or B/Higher 4 JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese I & JPN 1023
Beginning Japanese 11
Japanese: Language A or B/Higher 5 JPN 1013 Beginning Japanese 1,
JPN 1023 Beginning Japanese Il ,
JPN 2013 Intermediate Japanese 1 &
JPN 2023 Intermediate Japanese Il
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
Calculus Il
Music/Standard 4 w/diploma MUS 1713 Theory |
Music/Higher 4 MUS 1713 Theory 1
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
Physics/Higher 4 PHYS 2014 Algebra-Based Physics I & PHYS
2024 Algebra-Based Physics Il
Psychology/Standard 4 w/diploma PSY 2003 General Psychology
Psychology/Higher 4 PSY 2003 General Psychology

Social and Cultural Anthropology/Standard

4 w/diploma

ANTH 1213 Introduction to Anthropology

Social and Cultural Anthropology/Higher 4 ANTH 2003 Cultural Anthropology

Spanish: Language A or B/Standard 4 w/diploma SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish I

Spanish: Language A or B/Standard 5 w/diploma SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish1 & SPAN 1023
Beginning Spanish I

Spanish: Language A or B/Higher 4 SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish 1 & SPAN 1023
Beginning Spanish 11

Spanish: Language A or B/Higher 5 SPAN 1013 Beginning Spanish I,
SPAN 1023 Beginning Spanish Il ,
SPAN 2013 Intermediate Spanish I &
SPAN 2023 Intermediate Spanish I]

Theater Arts/Standard 4 w/diploma TH 2273 Introduction to Theatre

Theater Arts/Higher ) TH 2273 Introduction to Theatre

Visual Arts/Standard 4 w/diploma ART 2123 Experiencing Art

Visual Arts/Higher 4 ART 2123 Experiencing Art
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